@ EQFI;tS(ZIgll? h]IJCt 11} Public Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY DECISION
MEETING

WEDNESDAY, 23 MARCH 2016 AT 10AM

THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM, THIRD FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL
Telephone enquiries to Jane Di Dino 023 9283 4060
Email: jane.didino@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY DECISION MEETING
Councillor Rob New (Conservative)

Group Spokespersons

Councillor Yahiya Chowdhury, Labour
Councillor Julie Swan, UK Independence Party
Councillor Phil Smith, Liberal Democrat

(NB  This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting).

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are

accepted.
AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declaration of Members' Interests
3 The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 (Pages 1 - 6)

Purpose.
To brief the Cabinet Member for Environment & Community Safety that the

Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 comes into force on 6 April 2016 and
enables relevant enforcement officers defined as being the police, customs
officers or 'an officer of a local authority' to exercise powers under the Act
relating to any premises including, prohibition, entry by warrant, search and
seizure.

To advise the Cabinet Member for Environment & Community Safety that the



Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 also creates powers to 'stop and search'
persons, enter and search vehicles, board and search vessels but these
powers are specific to the police and customs officers.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Environment &
Community Safety agree that the Director of Regulatory Services,
Community Safety and Troubled families is delegated to deliver these
new enforcement powers on behalf of the City Council, in respect of
retail business premises in conjunction with the police, and may
authorise appropriate officers within the directorate to carry out these
new enforcement functions.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records
those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the
meeting's venue.




Agenda Iltem 3

Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Title of meeting: Cabinet Member for Environment and Community safety
Date of meeting: 23 March 2016

Subject: The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016

Report by: The Director of Regulatory Services, Community Safety and

Troubled families

Key decision: Yes
Full Council decision: No
1 Purpose of Report

1.2

2.1

3.1

3.2

To brief the Cabinet Member for Environment and Community Safety that the
Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 comes into force on 6™ April 2016 and enables
relevant enforcement officers defined as being the police, customs officers or 'an
officer of a local authority' to exercise powers under the Act relating to any premises
including, prohibition, entry by warrant, search and seizure.

To advise the Cabinet Member for Environment and Community Safety that the
Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 also creates powers to 'stop and search'’
persons, enter and search vehicles, board and search vessels but these powers are
specific to the police and customs officers

Recommendation

That the Cabinet Member for Environment and Community Safety agrees that the
Director of Regulatory Services, Community Safety and Troubled families is
delegated to deliver these new enforcement powers on behalf of the City Council, in
respect of retail business premises in conjunction with the police, and may
authorise appropriate officers within the directorate to carry out these new
enforcement functions.

Background

This report is further to the cabinet decision of 11" November 2015 where it was

recommended that the Cabinet Member for Environment and Community Safety

agrees to use primary legislation, due to be enacted in early 2016, to address the
concern around new psychoactive substances in the city.

The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 (the Act) has received royal assent and will
come into force on 6th April 2016.

Pade 1

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

3.3  The act contains substantive regulation about the possession and supply of
psychoactive substances, which are defined as 'any substance which is capable of
producing a psychoactive effect in a person who consumes it and is not an
exempted substance’, examples of exempted substances being caffeine and
alcohol.

3.4 A web link to the act is provided in the background list of documents at the end of
this report

3.5 The Act sets out clear powers for police and customs officers to stop and search
persons, enter and search vehicles, board and search vessels.

3.6 The act also sets out powers in respect of premises the definition of which is wide
and will include domestic as well as retail business premises. 'Relevant
enforcement officers’, being the police, customs officers or 'an officer of a local
authority' can with a justices warrant enter premises to search and seize any item.

3.7 A senior officer of police, customs or the local authority may also use notices and
prohibition powers in relation to prohibited activity on premises.

3.8  Portsmouth City Council is a ‘'local weights and measures authority' and has
various statutory duties placed upon the authority to enforce consumer law and
regulations, and consequently trading standards officers are authorised to enforce
these duties on behalf of the City Council.

3.9 To enforce these consumer laws officers can exercise powers, within the
constraints of an enforcer's code which give them power to enter business premises
to carry out inspections and make appropriate seizures of goods and documents.
Dwellings are specifically excluded.

3.10 The Act contains various provisions in respect of ‘premises’ which are not specific to
businesses and can therefore apply to both business and domestic premises.

3.11 These provisions include premises notices relating to prohibited activity, premises
orders where notices have not been complied with, and offences for failing to
comply with orders.

3.12 Relevant enforcement officers have no routine power of entry to premises under the
act but may apply for a justice's warrant to enter and search premises.

3.13 There are a number of retail premises in the city commonly known as 'head shops'
which have been linked with the supply of psychoactive substances and would be
subject to the new provisions when they are in force.

3.14 There is already a partnership in place with the City Council, and the police working
with these shops to reduce anti-social behaviour and tackle individuals using
psychoactive substances in public areas. As a consequence of these actions the
proprietors of these shops have been made aware that the act will create serious
criminal offences should they be in possession of these substances or supply them.

Pade 2

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

All 'nead shops' shops have been visited and advised that the new law will take
effect on 6™ April 2016.

3.15 Whist the City Councils enforcement policy sees compliance as its objective, and
legal action as the last resort the supply of psychoactive substances is a matter of
serious concern to public health. The City Council will work with partners to ensure
that the most appropriate course of action is taken to address the issue of
psychoactive substances including powers in the new act

4 Reason for recommendations

4.1  The City Council has lobbied for new laws to tackle the supply of psychoactive
substances from high street shops. The Director of Regulatory Services,
Community Safety and Troubled Families is considered best placed to deliver these
new enforcement powers on behalf of the City Council since the directorate
contains a range of expertise in both civil and criminal enforcement particularly the
trading standards team which has considerable criminal enforcement experience
in tackling illegal practices in retail environments. These enforcement activities
however should be limited to the retail trading environment.

4.2  The Act should stop the supply of psychoactive substances from shops but the
effect on the overall supply of psychoactive substances is unknown therefore the
Director of Regulatory Services, Community Safety and Troubled Families should
continue to advise the Cabinet Member for Environment and Community Safety of
emerging trends that may need further consideration

5. Equality impact assessment (EIA)
5.1 A preliminary EIA has been completed. A full EIA is not required.
6. Legal Implications

6.1 Enforcement of the act by the City Council will impact on existing resources both in
officer time, costs of testing products and legal costs which could be substantial
should actions be defended.

7. Director of Finance's comments

7.1  The new Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 will place additional powers and
responsibilities on the local authority from the 6™ April 2016, as set out in the report
above. These powers and responsibilities will need to be delivered by the
Directorate within the existing resources, as currently no additional funding has
been made available for this purpose.

7.2  Whilst the Directorate will use existing staff resources to give advice and conduct
any required visits, any intervention that triggers criminal enforcement action will
incur additional testing and legal costs.

Pade 3

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



Portsmouth
CITY COUNCIL

Signed by:
Appendices:

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:

Title of document Location
The Psychoactive Substances Act | http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/2/pdfs/u
2016 kpga 20160002 en.pdf

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ... ON e

Signed by:

Pade 4

www.portsmouth.gov.uk



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Preliminary assessment form v5 /2013

The preliminary impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:

I identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies which require a full EIA by
looking at:

I negative, positive or no impact on any of the equality groups

[ opportunity to promote equality for the equality groups
p data/feedback

m prioritise if and when a full EIA should be completed

[ justify reasons for why a full EIA is not going to be completed

Directorate: Director of Regulatory, Community Safety & Troubled Families ‘
Function e.g. HR, hegulatory l
IS, carers:

h A

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :

The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 implementation

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

'S Y

I J Existing

i/;\| New / proposed
| Changed Page 5

"y

N
—
|

A



Q1 - What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?

The Director of Regulatory Services, Community Safety and Troubled families is delegated to deliver
new enforcement powers contained in the Psychoactive Substances Act 2016, on behalf of the city
council, in respect of retail business premises in conjunction with the police, and may authorise
appropriate officers within the directorate to carry out these new enforcement functions.

Q2 - Who is this policy, service, function, project or strategy going to benefit or have a
detrimental effect on and how?

The policy will enable the Director of Regulatory Services, Community Safety and Troubled Families to
authorise principally trading standards officers and any other officer within the directorate to enforce
the provisions of the act in retail premises ie 'Head Shops' using criminal and civil sanctions. The sale
of so called 'legal highs' will now be illegal. In England in 2014, there were were 67 deaths directly
related to psychoactive substances. Clearly they have a detrimental effect on our community and
have caused various harm to individuals who have been subject to addiction, and the resulting effects
of that addiction. As well as individual harm, local communities have also been affected by the resulting
actions of those people who have been 'high' after taking psychoactive substances purchased from
'head shops'. In one particular case the resulting antisocial behavior was such that the police imposed
a three month closure order upon the premises, after which the antisocial incidents stopped
immediately. The community as a whole will benefit from these substances being taken out of the high
street, and the supply ranked along side that of drugs caught under the Misuse of Drugs Act.

Q3 - Thinking about each group below, does, or could the policy, service, function, project or
strategy have a negative impact on members of the equality groups below?

Group Negative Pof:::cft no Unclear

Age
Disability
Race
Gender

Transgender

Religion or belief

Pregnancy and maternity

*

*

*

*

Sexual orientation *
*

*

O

Other excluded groups Page



If the answer is "negative™ or "unclear"” consider doing a full EIA

Q4 - Does, or could the policy, service, function, project or strategy help to promote equality for
members of the equality groups?

Age e * [
Disability () * ()
Race @ * [
Gender () * ()
Transgender [ ] * [ ]
Sexual orientation () * ()

Religion or belief D [_] U

Pregnancy or maternity |

\
k. vy
TN
AN _J
Y

J

Other excluded groups m ICE | ]
If the answer is "no" or "unclear” consider doing a full EIA

Q5 - Do you have any feedback data from the equality groups that influences, affects or shapes
this policy, service, function, project or strategy?

Age * a8 @
=

Disability ) * ()
a8 I A
Race L ) [
TN T —
Gender L) 8.4 L)

Transgender L_J @ [ ]

Sexual orientation f 1



Religion or belief *
Pregnancy and maternity *

Other excluded groups *

If the answer is "no™ or "unclear” consider doing a full EIA

Q6 - Using the assessments in questions 3, 4 and 5 should a full assessment be carried out on
this policy, service, function or strategy?

yes % No

Q7 - How have you come to this decision?

The evidence from the substance misuse strategy coordinator is that the city council has conducted
some research with users of psychoactive substances which are not exclusive to any group. The use
of these substances has a negative impact both upon the user and the community as a whole. The
impact of this legislation is wide reaching to any person who commits offences, is not exclusive or
group based. Anecdotal evidence is that younger people are more likely to be users

If you have to complete a full EIA please contact the Equalities and diversity team if you require help
Tel: 023 9283 4789 or email:equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Q8 - Who was involved in the EIA?

Peter Emmett, Trading Standards Manager
Alan Knobel, Substance Misuse Strategy Coordinator

This EIA has been approved by: Rachael Dalby

Contact number: 023 9283 4040

Date: 29 February 2016

Page 8



Please emaill a copy of your completed EIA to the Equality and diversity team. We will contact you with
any comments or queries about your preliminary EIA.

Telephone: 023 9283 4789

Email: equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 The Psychoactive Substances Act 2016
	ecs 23 March 16 EIA


